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NATIONAL GRIEVANCE 
NG-2/9/23 

Date:  February 9,  2023 

To:  Denise Biaggi-Ayer 
Executive Director  
Office of Labor-Management Relations 
U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs 
 810 Vermont Avenue, NW  
Washington, DC 20420 
Denise.biaggi-ayer@va.gov 
Sent via electronic mail only  

From: Lynn Alexis, Staff Counsel, National Veterans Affairs Council (#53) (“NVAC”), 
American Federation of Government Employees, AFL-CIO (“AFGE”) 

RE: National Grievance against the Department of Veterans Affairs for violating law and 
contract by failing to bargain and implementing unilateral changes to the VANIHCS 
Medical Staff Bylaws  

STATEMENT OF CHARGES 

Pursuant to the provisions of Article 43, Section 11 of the Master Agreement Between the 
Department of Veterans Affairs and the American Federation of Government Employees (2011) 
(“MCBA”), American Federation of Government Employees/National Veterans Affairs Council 
(“the Union”) is filing this National Grievance against you and all other associated officials and/or 
individuals acting as agents on behalf of the Department of Veterans Affairs (“Department”), 
(collectively, “the Parties”) for failure to notify and bargain with NVAC over its unilateral changes 
to the Medical Staff Bylaws and Rules for the Veterans Health Administration VA Northern 
Indiana Health Care Systems  (VANIHCS) Fort Wayne Indiana (hereinafter “Medical Staff 
Bylaws”).  To  date, the VA has failed to remedy this violation, and as such, continues to violate 
policy, contract, government-wide regulations, and law. 

Specifically, the VA violated Articles 2, 3, 47, and 49 of the MCBA, an October 1, 2020 
Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) establishing ground rules for local bargaining (Exhibit 
A), 5 U.S.C. § 7116(a)(1) and (5), and any and all other relevant articles, laws, regulations, and 
past practices not herein specified. The Union specifically reserves the right to supplement this 
grievance based upon the discovery of new evidence or information of which it is not presently 
aware, or otherwise, as necessary.  
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STATEMENT OF THE CASE 
Background 

 On a continuing and ongoing basis since at least 2020, the Department has made unilateral 
changes to the VANIHCS Medical Staff Bylaws without notice or bargaining with the union1.  
These changes directly impact and affect the conditions of employment for the BUEs in at least 
two AFGE locals- Local 1020 and 1384, affecting terms of conditions including but not limited to 
disciplinary issues, credentialing, and licensing.  For example, in Article III Medical Staff 
Membership, under Section 3.02 Qualifications for Medical Staff Membership and Clinical 
Privileges subsection (2)(b), the Department unilaterally removed certain practitioners from those 
who are credentialed and privileged to practice independently and serve as members of the Medical 
Staff, virtually changing the scope of those practices.    

When the Union became aware of these continued unilateral changes, it attempted to 
engage in bargaining with the Department on numerous occasions as concerns infiltrated the 
bargaining unit, to no avail. Recently, on October 26, 2022, NVAC formally demanded to bargain 
regarding the latest iteration, the 2020/2022 Medical Staff Bylaws within the VANIHCS. See, 
Exhibit C.  After the formal request to bargain, the Department never ceased or desisted the 
unilateral implementations of its 2020/2022 Medical Staff Bylaws. The VA Senior Strategic 
Business Partner, Kenneth Hill and NVAC District 6 Representative, Willie Haywood, met via 
Microsoft Teams on November 2nd and 30th, 2022, after the NVAC’s formal demand to bargain. 
Shortly thereafter, on December 21, 2022, the Department contended it will no longer return to the 
bargaining table (Exbibit D) and continued to unilaterally implement changes to the Medical Staff 
Bylaws. 

Articles 47 and 49 of the MCBA require that the Department provide reasonable advance 
notice to the Union prior to changing conditions of employment of bargaining unit employees 
(“BUEs”) as to provide the Union with sufficient information for the purpose of exercising its full 
right to bargain. Notices of changes impacting two or more VA Locals requires notice to NVAC. 
The MCBA language is meant to prevent the Department from unilaterally changing the nature of 
employees’ conditions of employment, without first notifying the Union and bargaining, if 
requested, to address concerns affecting the bargaining unit.  

Namely, Article 47, Section 4(B) of the MCBA requires the Department to notify the Union 
at the National level of recognition when a proposed change in personnel, policies, practices, or 
working conditions affect the interest of two or more local unions.  Similarly, Article 49, Section 
2(A), states in part, that “[i]n all matters relating to personnel policies, practices, and other 
conditions of employment, the parties will have due regard for the obligations imposed by 5 U.S.C. 
Chapter 71…” (Emphasis Added).  The Federal Service Labor-Management Relations Statute 
(Statute) also provides that an agency must notify and bargain in good faith with labor unions prior 
to changing conditions of employment.  

The MOU’s Preamble Section I, b, provides that the VANIHCS agrees to meet, confer, 
and negotiate in good faith pursuant to the MCBA, and Section II, Meetings Section c, provides 

1 See, Exhibit B, Email thread dated August 2021, with AFGE Local 1384 Representative Eric Clapp and District 6 
Representative Willie Haywood regarding unilateral changes of the Medical Bylaws.  
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that a meeting will be held for the purpose of bargaining tentatively every Wednesday at 2:00 pm 
EST following a demand to bargain. By failing to meet and confer in good faith in the manner set 
forth in those agreed upon provisions, the Department has violated the MOU.   

Here, the Department’s failure to provide adequate notice to the Union, its unilateral 
changes and continued unilateral implementations, and surface bargaining, is in violation of both 
the spirit and letter of the Parties’ MCBA, MOU, as well as the Statute.   

Violations 

By unilaterally changing the Medical Staff Bylaws without proper notice and bargaining 
in good faith with the Union and disregarding the concerns raised by the Union and the BUEs, the 
Department has interfered with, restrained, and coerced the employees in the exercises of their 
rights under the Statute, and has committed unfair labor practices under 5 U.S.C. § 7116(a)(1) and 
(5).  The Department committed multiple unfair labor practices by its continued failure and refusal 
to bargain in good faith and repudiating an existing agreement. 

Additionally, Article 2 of the MCBA requires that the Department comply with applicable 
federal statutes and regulations in the administration of matters covered by the MCBA. Therefore, 
in violating 5 U.S.C. § 7116, the Department also violated Article 2. 

Further, Article 3 encourages the parties to maintain a cooperative labor-management 
relationship that is based on mutual respect, open communication, consideration of each other’s 
views, and minimizing collective bargaining disputes. By unilaterally changing and implementing 
the Medical Staff Bylaws without meeting with the Union, the Department renounced its 
commitments under Article 3 of the MCBA and triggered further collective bargaining disputes.  

The Department also violated the MOU, as well as Articles 47, 49 of the MCBA, which 
set forth the parties’ mid-term bargaining obligations at the national level and requires that the 
Department give adequate notice and pre-implementation opportunity to bargain before the 
Department may lawfully implement changes in conditions of employment affecting unit 
employees. 

Lastly, by unilaterally changing and implementing the Medical Staff Bylaws, the 
Department has violated any and all other relevant articles, laws, rules, regulations, customs and 
past practices not herein specified.  

Remedy Requested 

The Union asks that to remedy the above situation, the VA agree to the following:  

• To cease and desist the changes and implementations to the Medical Staff Bylaws until its
bargaining obligations under the MCBA are met;

• To fully comply with its contractual obligations under the MOU, Articles 2, 3, 47, and 49
of the MCBA, and its statutory obligations under the Statute.

• To distribute an electronic notice posting signed by VA Senior Strategic Business Partner,
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Kenneth Hill via email, concerning the Department’s unilateral changes and 
implementation of changes in conditions of employment in violation of the MCBA and 
federal law concerning the Medical Staff Bylaws; 

• To return to status quo ante until bargaining obligations are met, including rescinding the
omissions of certain practitioners that were removed from Medial Staff as licensed
independent practitioners;

• To make whole any VA employee affected by the unilateral implementation of the Medical
Staff Bylaws, including back pay, interest, and attorney’s fees;

• To comply with its obligations under federal law, regulations, and contract; and
• To agree to any and all other remedies appropriate in this matter.

Time Frame and Contact 

This is a National Grievance, and the time frame for resolution of this matter is not waived 
until the matter is resolved or settled. If you have any questions, please contact the undersigned 
at AFGE Office of the General Counsel. The undersigned representative is designated to represent 
the Union in all matters related to the subject of this National Grievance. 

_____________________________ 
Lynn Alexis, Esq.  
Staff Counsel, National VA Council 
Office of the General Counsel 
American Federation of Government Employees, AFL-CIO 
80 F Street, NW 
Washington, DC 20001 
tel: 202.639.6424 
efax: 202.379.2928 
lynn.alexis@afge.org 

cc: Alma L. Lee, President, AFGE/NVAC 
William Wetmore, Chairperson, Grievance and Arbitration Committee, AFGE/NVAC 
Thomas Dargon, Jr., Supervisory Attorney, AFGE/NVAC 
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From:
To: Lynn Alexis
Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] Re: Medical Staff BYLAWS AND RULES
Date: Wednesday, February 1, 2023 4:16:45 PM

From: Clapp, Eric <Eric.Clapp@va.gov> 
Sent: Monday, December 27, 2021 2:07 PM
To: 
Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] Re: Medical Staff BYLAWS AND RULES

From: Willie Haywood <haywood.union@sbcglobal.net> 
Sent: Friday, August 27, 2021 2:10 PM
To: Clapp, Eric <Eric.Clapp@va.gov>
Cc: 

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Medical Staff BYLAWS AND RULES

Good afternoon Eric,
Gwen and Tony will have to review the Bylaws and they can tell me what type of appropriate action they
would like me to take. 

Willie E. Haywood, Jr.
President, 6th District AFGE/ NVAC 262
1-440-915-4058
haywood.union@sbcglobal.net

On Friday, August 27, 2021, 07:35:45 AM EDT, Clapp, Eric <eric.clapp@va.gov> wrote:

Mr. Haywood,

I also have the question if these are subject to local or national bargaining?

Eric



From: Willie Haywood <haywood.union@sbcglobal.net> 
Sent: Thursday, August 26, 2021 3:17 PM
To: Clapp, Eric <Eric.Clapp@va.gov>
Cc: 

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: Medical Staff BYLAWS AND RULES

Good afternoon Eric,

No, to my knowledge this was not forward to NVAC office.. I a informing Gwen and Tony I will bring this
subject matter up at the VISN 10 meeting with Eric Gonzales,

Willie E. Haywood, Jr.
President, 6th District AFGE/ NVAC 262
1-440-915-4058
haywood.union@sbcglobal.net

On Thursday, August 26, 2021, 03:04:37 PM EDT, Clapp, Eric <eric.clapp@va.gov> wrote:

Mr. Haywood,

Did National receive notification on these.  This is the supporting document on the topic of yesterdays
NDTB.

In Solidarity,

Eric A. Clapp

AFGE 1384 Representative
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5. AFGE presented verbal contentions on who should be included in Article III
section 2 as practitioners who are credentialed and privileged to practice
independently and serve as members of the Medical Staff.  AFGE
representatives presented the national template for Medical Staff Bylaws and
Rules to support their contention of including additional credentialed staff as
independent members of the Medical Staff.

6. The agency has considered the AFGE contentions and is denying the request to
include the additional credentialed staff as independent members of the Medical
Staff.

7. The agency considers the obligations of the Demand to Bargain have been met
and is now closed.

8. Please contact Senior Strategic Business Partner Kenneth Hill
(Kenneth.hill@va.gov) if you have any questions or concerns about this notice.

Kenneth Hill 

Senior Strategic Business Partner 

Attachments: 

1) 2022 Medical Staff Bylaws and Rules

2) Demand to Bargain Ground Rules 2020

3) Delegation of Authority MOU
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